
VGIN Advisory Board Meeting 
Wednesday, April 15, 2009 

1:00 PM, CESC 
 
 

Members Present: Senator John Watkins Lemuel Stewart, Jr. 
 Delegate Jeffrey Frederick James Wilson 
 Charles Donato Bill Price for Joseph Maroon 
 Christopher Knights Kathy Prescott for Supervisor Jenkins 
 Connie Brennan Stan Hovey 
 Murali Rao for David Ekern Rick Pevarski 
 Trent Park for John Anderson  
  W. Page Cockrell 
Members Absent: Delegate Beverly Sherwood Senator Mark Obenshain 
 Delegate Sam Nixon Delegate Salvatore Iaquinto 
 Delegate Dave Englin  
   
Staff Present: Dan Widner, Coordinator Stu Blankenship, Staff 
 Steve Marzolf, ISP Director Kenny Brevard, Staff 
 Stefanie McGuffin, ISP Regional Coordinator Terry Mayo, Board Assistant 
   
   

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Senator John Watkins called the meeting to order at 1:03 PM.  Senator Watkins 
welcomed and thanked everyone for coming.   
 
Senator Watkins asked for corrections or additions to the January 7, 2009 draft 
minutes.  Mr. Rick Pevarski made the motion to accept, and Mr. Charles Donato 
seconded the motion.  The minutes were approved 12-0-0 (Delegate Jeffrey 
Frederick arrived after vote).     
 

2. 2009-GEOSPATIAL LEGISLATIVE REVIEW 
 

Senator Watkins addressed the Advisory Group and said that one of the issues that 
came up this year at the General Assembly has to do with Geospatial technologies 
here in the state of Virginia.  A bill was introduced by Senator Barker, Northern 
Virginia, that would establish a “Geospatial Health Network Advisory Board”.   
Senator Watkins informed the Advisory Board that Mr. Dan Widner has included a 
letter in the Advisory Board’s packet that was sent to Senator Barker.  Senator 
Watkins said that he hopes that Senator Barker and a representative from the Health 
Department would be able to meet with the Advisory Board at its July 8 meeting.   
 
Senator Watkins said that he had written a letter to the head of the Virginia 
Community College System about the importance of teaching Geospatial Technology 
in the Community College System.  The response from Chancellor Glen DuBois was 
included with the Board packet of information.  Richard Pevarski asked about the 



curriculum.  James Wilson said that the universities have been working with the state 
in providing information on Geospatial technology.  Senator Watkins asked for 
further questions and comments.  There were none.  
 
 
Mr. Dan Widner addressed the Board, and introduced Susan Siegfriend and Stefanie 
McGuffin.   Susan is with the Attorney’s General Office and is the counsel for both 
VGIN and Public Safety Communications.  Stefanie McGuffin is the newest Regional 
Coordinator (Appomattox Region) recently hired in to the Integrated Services 
Division at VITA.  Stefanie started work at VITA on Friday, April 10, 2009.   
 

3. VUPS DEMONSTRATION – Rick Pevarski 
 
Senator Watkins informed the Board that Rick Pevarski will give a VUPS (Miss 
Utility) demonstration.  Mr. Pevarski addressed the Board and gave a brief 
presentation called “Enhancing Communications between E911 Centers and Utilities” 
The presentation is posted on the VGIN website.  Mr. Pevarski discussed the 
application that VUPS is making available to all PSAPs in Virginia, free of charge.  
The application leverages the VGIN basemapping products to provide PSAPs with an 
easy tool for Miss Utility reporting.  Mr. Pevarski stated that without the VGIN 
products, the application would not be possible.  Senator Watkins thanked Mr. 
Pevarski for his presentation and said that it was very informative. 
 
 

4. 2009 ORTHOIMAGERY STATUS 
 
Senator Watkins addressed the Advisory Board and said that Stuart Blankenship will 
give an update of the 2009-2012 Orthophotography Contract.  Mr. Blankenship 
proceeded to address the Advisory Board and provided a brief presentation and 
update (see VGIN Website).  He said that the Orthoimagery contract was signed on 
December 23, 2008 with a planned maximum budget of $6.0 million (based upon the 
2006/07 budget).  Mr. Blankenship said that a preliminary deliverable will arrive May 
1, 2009, and the final product delivered by September 31, 2009.  He noted how 
delivery times have been cut in half since the first statewide flyover in 2002 (and in 
2006/07).  He also noted how the cost has come down significantly compared to the 
previous acquisitions.  Mr. Blankenship and Senator Watkins asked for questions.  
There were none. 
 
Mr. Widner refreshed the Advisory Board’s memory and reminded them that last 
summer VGIN had been in dialog with Google.  As a result of the efforts, the 2006/07 
imagery provided by VGIN is now visible through Google Earth and Google Maps. 
 

5. BROADBAND MAPPING IN VIRGINIA 
 
Mr. Widner addressed the Board and wanted to inform the Board about broadband 



mapping in Virginia.  Karen Jackson, the Director of the Office of Telework 
Promotion, has taken the lead through the Secretary of Technology’s office to work 
with the Broadband providers in Virginia to obtain data for broadband mapping.  
Karen utilized VGIN services to produce a statewide broadband map, which Dan 
Widner demonstrated to the Board.  Mr. Widner said that states are mapping their 
broadband assets as a first step towards accessing federal stimulus money for 
Broadband Mapping.  Senator Watkins asked for questions from the Board and 
audience, and there were none.   
 
 

6. QUESTIONS OR COMMENTS ON APRIL COORDINATOR’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Widner referred the Board to the Coordinator’s Report in their packet, and gave a 
quick update to the Strategic Planning.  Mr. Widner said that he has gotten the money 
allocated and is waiting on authorization to proceed.  The Road Centerline project is 
ongoing, and he has been meeting with the team at VDOT.  VGIN and VDOT will be 
working with ESRI to provide an assessment to assist VGIN and VDOT in moving 
forward.  Mr. Widner informed the Advisory Board that the localities involvement 
continues to progress and improve.  The NAVTEQ data has been presented to the 
localities, and now have a statewide license for state and local government.  Mr. 
Widner is hoping that the interest is up from the localities.  Senator Watkins asked if 
there were questions or comments, and there were none.   
 

7. NEW BUSINESS/OPEN DISCUSSION/CONCLUSION 
 
Mr. Murali Rao addressed the Board - asked about tying the Community College 
System in with geospatial projects within state agencies.  Senator Watkins said that 
colleges and universities have their own geospatial programs, and that they are 
welcomed to participate.  Trent Park addressed the Board and said that is important 
for agencies to look at the use of internships so they can see how GIS works, and that 
they have had some involvement from the universities.   
 
Mr. Widner said that as a part of the VGIN strategic planning process we would 
identify a structure for providing internships and even perhaps mentorship at the high 
school.  He would like to see it starting with the state agencies.    
 
Mr. Steve Marzolf addressed the Advisory Board and informed the Board that at the 
last E911 Wireless Services Board Meeting in March that 40% of the Wireless Board 
Granted awards to GIS projects.  Mr. Marzolf said that it is very significant and 
important to recognize the partnership between VGIN and E911.  Mr. Lem Stewart 
addressed the Board and thanked both the VGIN and PSC staff on the work they have 
done and also working together.  
 
Senator Watkins asked Mr. Widner to contact Senator Barker and the Health 
Department to see if they will be able to attend the meeting in July.  Mr. Widner said 
that he will work through this request through the ITIES Director and others at VITA.    



 
Senator Watkins informed the Advisory Board that the next VGIN Advisory Board 
meeting is July 8. Senator Watkins thanked everyone for coming, and commented 
that he was happy with the Advisory Board turn out.  The Meeting was adjourned at 
2:30 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted:  
 
 
_______________________________  

                    Terry D. Mayo 
 
 
__________________________________ 
                                Date 
 


